Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 07-0384 MC



)

BRIAN SNEED, d/b/a SNEED’S 
)

TRUCKING,

)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


We grant the motion for summary determination filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”).  Brian Sneed, d/b/a Sneed’s Trucking (“Sneed”)
 committed one violation of 49 CFR § 382.115(a).
Procedure


On March 20, 2007, the MHTC filed a complaint alleging that Sneed violated a federal law.  Sneed was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on May 22, 2007, but he did not file an answer to the complaint.  On July 27, 2007, the MHTC filed a motion for summary determination.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) Sneed does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave Sneed until August 24, 2007, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.  Therefore, the following facts as established by the MHTC's exhibits are undisputed.

Findings of Fact


1.  Sneed has his principal place of business at 4117 Montgall, Kansas City, Missouri.  Sneed was in the process of purchasing and on August 31, 2005, had under his control a 1987 Freightliner truck (“the truck”), which had a gross vehicle weight rating of 50,000 pounds.

2.  On August 31, 2005, Sneed authorized his driver, Stacy Stomile, to use the truck to transport property upon public highways from Vance Brothers, Inc., in Kansas City, Missouri, to Musselman & Hall in Kansas City, Missouri, before he had implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.
Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.
  The MHTC has the burden of proving its case by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”
  The MHTC established that Sneed was an “employer” and that his driver drove a “commercial motor vehicle” under 49 CFR 382.107, which provides:
Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle –
(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds)[.]

*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

The MHTC alleges that Sneed violated state and federal laws.  Section 622.550, RSMo 2000, states:
[T]he division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.
The MHTC asks us to find a violation of 49 CFR § 382.115(a) because on August 31, 2005, Sneed authorized his driver to operate a commercial motor vehicle before he had implemented an alcohol and controlled substances testing program.

49 CFR § 382.115(a) states:

(a) All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part [relating to alcohol and drug testing] on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.

The MHTC’s evidence shows and Sneed admitted to the Missouri Department of Transportation’s investigator
 that he had no drug or alcohol testing program in effect when his driver operated a commercial motor vehicle.  We find that Sneed violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) one time.

The motion for summary determination also alleges that Sneed violated state law, but the MHTC did not allege this in the complaint.  We can find cause for discipline only on the law cited in the complaint.
  The motion also alleges that Sneed’s driver operated the vehicle without operating authority, which was not included in the complaint.  We cannot find discipline for uncharged conduct.
  
Summary


Sneed violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a).  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on September 7, 2007.



________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY


Commissioner

	�The MHTC filed the complaint against Sneed’s Trucking, which the MHTC admits is a sole proprietorship.  We change the style of the case to reflect the true party.


	�The MHTC also asks that we deem the allegations in its complaint admitted because Sneed never responded to it.  The MHTC relies on Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.380(7)(C), which allows us to sanction a party who does not file an answer by deeming the facts pleaded in the complaint admitted.  We need not rule on this because the MREC proved its case through evidence presented.  


	�Section 621.040; § 622.320, RSMo 2000.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to RSMo Supp. 2006.


	�Section 622.350.


	�Exhibit 4 to the motion.


	�Sander v. Missouri Real Estate Comm’n, 710 S.W.2d 896, 901 (Mo. App., E.D. 1986).  


	�Missouri Dental Bd. v. Cohen, 867 S.W.2d 295, 297 (Mo. App., W.D. 1993).  
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